1951

Los Angeles and Salt Lake Railroad Company and Union Pacific Railroad Company v. Public Service Commission of Utah et al : Brief of Petitioners

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is a proceeding to review an original order and decision and an amended order and decision, as entered after rehearing, by the Public Service Commission of Utah.

In this brief parties to the proceedings may sometimes be designated as follows: Petitioners as the Railroad or the Railroad Company, respondent Public Service Commis-

sion of Utah as the Commission, and various parties appearing in opposition to the application will be referred to as protestants where not specifically named otherwise.

On May 4, 1948, the Railroad Company filed its application with the Commission asking permission and authority from the Commission to discontinue its station at Black Rock, Utah, as an agency station and to maintain the same as a non-agency station, except during the months of April and May of each year during which two months a regular agent would be maintained. The application alleged as a basis for the relief sought that except for the months of April and May the volume of railroad business and the revenue received therefrom through the station of Black Rock was less than the cost of maintaining an agent there at the station; that the business transacted at the station of Black Rock during the remaining ten months of the year did not justify, warrant, or render profitable or advisable the further maintenance or operation of such agency during the period of June to March, inclusive, of each year; and that the public convenience and necessity and the economical operation of the line of railroad operated by petitioners required the discontinuance of said agency during the ten months in question.

For some reason the matter was not set for hearing for six months but the application was finally noticed and hearing was held at Fillmore, Utah, on November 10, 1948. The original report and order was not issued by the Commission until August 12, 1949 (R. 16), the bad winter of 1948-1949 having passed in the meantime and there having

been some contact and discussion between the county commissioners of Millard County and the members of the Public Service Commission during the intervening period (R. 13, 14-15). The Railroad Company objected to the original order and filed a petition for rehearing (R. 23-28), and one of the protestants likewise being dissatisfied also filed petition for rehearing (R. 30), whereupon the Commission granted a rehearing (R. 32). The rehearing commenced at Fillmore, Utah, on May 15, 1950 (R. 297), and was continued at Salt Lake City on June 9, 1950, and thereafter, upon request of counsel for protestants, was orally argued before the Commission on December 7, 1950. The Commission issued its amended report and order on January 9, 1951 (R. 53).

In the original order the Commission authorized the discontinuance of an agent at the station during the period of May 16 to November 14 (R. 20). By the amended report and order the Commission authorized the closing of the station between December 1 and May 31 of each year, designating such period of time as "the winter sheep ranging season" in the Black Rock area (R. 55).

The Railroad on February 8, 1951, filed its petition in this court and had issued a writ of certiorari and seeks to review the entire proceedings had before the Public Service Commission, and in connection therewith seeks a reversal of the orders as issued by the Commission and a direction that the Commission authorize the closing of said station pursuant to the application and in accordance with the evidence produced at said hearings.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The station of Black Rock is located on the Los Angeles main line of the Railroad Company, approximately 45 miles south of Delta and 28 miles north from Milford, Utah, said two stations being the nearest open agency stations in the area (R. 228). There is no organized settlement at Black Rock, the only regularly established residences or places of habitation, other than quarters occupied by the Railroad section employes, in the vicinity of the station being the ranch residence buildings of the James Ranch, or what is known as the Black Rock Ranch, located 1 miles east of the Black Rock station. The nearest ranch house or other house elsewhere in the vicinity is 14 miles to the south of Black Rock in the direction of Milford (R. 528), and the nearest ranch house or residence to the north is at Oasis in the vicinity of Delta and approximately 40 miles north from Black Rock. The area surrounding Black Rock is for the most part arid, desert land and in the main is used for the grazing of various herds of sheep, most of which sheep have their summer ranges in the mountains east of Sanpete valley and north and south therefrom (R. 434-435, 253-255, 571, 554). No sheep are shipped out from Black Rock as fat sheep or on a market basis, the shipping of such sheep in and out of Black Rock being purely range to range movements. The owners of the Black Rock Ranch raise and operate cattle the year round. Some hay and grain is raised on the ranch but all such is fed to livestock or otherwise used at the ranch (R. 282-283), the only products being sold and shipped from the Black Rock Ranch being market cattle in connection with sales which are made only

once each year (R. 284). A shipment of one or two cars of cattle is sent from the Black Rock Ranch to market once each year (R. 608).

Sheep men who winter their sheep on this western desert in the Black Rock area, including both north and south thereof and west to the Nevada line, have permits to winter approximately 55,000 head of sheep. These various owners have not had on the desert recently the full numbers authorized by their permits (R. 453). The Commission correctly found in its original report and order that "Most of the sheep which winter in the area of Black Rock are trailed in the fall rather than being shipped, although some sheep are shipped into Black Rock for the winter season." The majority of the sheep herds wintered in the area are shipped out in the spring by rail, some of the sheep wintering in the western areas going north and being shipped out from Jericho and a considerable number being shipped out from Black Rock. Some of the sheep are sheared at Black Rock before shipping, as is also true at Jericho, but not as many are sheared at Black Rock now as in past years (R. 456). All of the sheep shipped out from Black Rock in these range to range movements are shipped out in April or May, and all of the wool taken from such sheep as are sheared at Black Rock is likewise shipped out in April or May. Since the discontinuance of the branch line formerly operated by The Denver and Rio Grande Western Railroad Company from Manti to Fountain Green and through Salt Creek Canyon to Nephi, some of the men shipping sheep out from Black Rock have turned to the use of trucks (R. 514), and others who formerly shipped either to Nephi or

by way of Nephi on into Sanpete now ship only from Black Rock to Juab, Utah, and then trail over into the Sanpete valley by way of Gunnison and Manti (R. 499-501, 503).

In addition to the Black Rock station and the livestock shipping there affected, there is a nonagency siding slightly more than 5 miles to the north of Black Rock known as Pumice (R. 227), which serves a deposit of perlite and pumice stone, known and designated insofar as shipping is concerned as volcanic ash. Some substantial amounts of this pumice aggregate or volcanic ash has been shipped from the nonagency point of Pumice and has been billed through Black Rock, although such shipments have not recently been as anticipated nor as promised by the people mining and shipping the same (R. 229).

Approximately 10 miles north of Black Rock there is a nonagency point designated as Cruz (R. 539), near which there is a limestone deposit. Shipments from this point are still prospective although there have been up to date 2 cars of raw limestone shipped out from Cruz and billed through Black Rock (R. 541). There has been none of such products shipped out from either Pumice or Cruz other than in carload lots and no shipment of less than carload lots is intended as far as the testimony at either hearing is concerned. In its original report and order the Commission found with respect to the need of the agent at Black Rock, "That the shipment of pumice stone, lime rock and other products of mines and other commodities as may be shipped in and out from such station in carload lots can be handled as conveniently without an agent as with one at said station" (R. 18).

In its amended report and order the Commission did not repeat this finding, although it made no finding that an agent was necessary to handle these mine shipments from either Pumice or Cruz but the Commission did attempt to use these shipments to bolster its conclusion to keep the agent at the station, saying that such shipping when considered "with the increased shipping activity during the winter sheep ranging season" was sufficient to warrant requiring keeping the station open during the "winter sheep ranging season." *There is no "increased shipping activity during the winter sheep ranging season."* That the Commission was grasping at something to support itself is clearly shown by the fact that the largest shipments of volcanic ash from Pumice move during the summer months of the year, during April and May when an agent will be maintained at the station, anyway, and the months following. It will be seen from Exhibit 10, as introduced at the hearing (R. 134-136), except for 1946 when they first started shipping this volcanic ash, that such shipments are rather light during the months of November and December, January, February and March. In 1947 there were a total of only 7 cars of volcanic ash shipped in the first 3 months and none during the last three months, whereas in April there were 22 cars, May 21, and July 15. During 1948 there were no shipments in January, 9 cars in February, and 4 in March. That year there were 24 cars in November and 16 in December, but the Commission by its amended order did not require the station to be kept open during November. The other shipments in 1948 showed a total of 113 cars of this volcanic ash being shipped during the months, April to September, inclusive. During the year 1949, 5 cars of

volcanic ash were shipped in January, none in February, 5 in November, and none during the months of September, October and December, the heaviest months during 1949 being May to August, inclusive, during which 4 months 56 cars were shipped from Pumice. In 1950, during the first 3 months, only 2 cars were shipped, 1 in February and 1 in March. Thus, it is clear that if any assistance from an agent would be needed for shipments from Pumice it would be during the summer months, and not during the months when the agent would be present pursuant to the Commission's order, other than April and May when the railroad voluntarily agreed to maintain the agent there. With respect to Cruz, there has been no shipping at all from Cruz which would warrant any services of an agent in connection therewith during any portion of the year.

As already referred to, the Black Rock Ranch makes only 1 shipment per year. The last such shipment being by Wayne Robinson in November 1949 (R. 122). Therefore, if there is any evidence warranting retention of an agent at Black Rock, it would have to be in connection with the sheep operations carried on during the so-called "winter sheep ranging season."

The Commission in its amended report and order (R. 54) found "that the railroad station at said Black Rock is now used principally as a shipping and receiving point for the seasonal handling of sheep, to wit: Between December 1 and May 31 of each year, known as the winter sheep ranging season." Mr. Pratt Allred, the regional grazer and range manager who gave the number of permitted sheep and then stated that the actual number of sheep

run have been less than the permitted number when asked how these sheep go out to Black Rock in the fall, answered, "Most of them trail, some of them ship" (R. 463). Even Carl Nielson, upon whose petition the Commission granted a rehearing, stated that his employer, L. L. Peterson, preferred to trail the sheep, but he preferred to ship them, and stated that they had shipped their sheep into Black Rock in 1948 but not in 1949, that they shipped them in in 1947, in 1942, and in 1928 (R. 574). He mentioned no other years when they had shipped their sheep into Black Rock in the fall but said they always shipped out in the spring. However, in that connection, he said that they do not ship any out from Black Rock at any time during the year other than April and May (R. 590). There was no other sheep man who testified at either the original or the rehearing who did any shipping of sheep into Black Rock in the fall, or who shipped out other than in April or May. A. K. Barton, one sheep owner who testified at both hearings, stated, "We usually trail from the summer range to winter range" (R. 259, 501). In connection with his operations, however, even in shipping out from Black Rock in the spring, he ships only to Juab, some distance southwest from Nephi, and stated that because of increased mileage over The Denver and Rio Grande via Provo from Sanpete to Black Rock there are a number of persons at the present time who are not using railroad facilities who previously did use them (R. 500), and a number of the sheep men are now turning to trucks instead of patronizing the railroad. Mr. Barton stated with respect to sheep moving out of Black Rock in 1950, "There has been 5 or 6 herds of sheep that are usually shipped that were trucked this year" (R.

499), and Mr. Barton, himself, the year before—in May of 1949—shipped about 1200 head by truck from Black Rock to the summer range rather than shipping by rail (R. 503). This, even in spite of the fact that the shipping out from Black Rock is done every year in April and May, during which time the Railroad agreed to maintain an agent at the station.

These facts show very definitely the extent to which these sheep men have been using rail facilities and the extent to which they continue to use or are discontinuing using such rail facilities.

The exhibits introduced both at the original hearing and the rehearing conclusively showed the actual amount of shipping done. With respect to these figures, protestants had no evidence to dispute them and, in fact, at the original hearing counsel who appeared for all protestants stated, and was confirmed by the range manager “We have no dispute with your total figures on your railroad figures” (R. 256, 253).

With respect to the facts concerning the shipping, we wish to refer specifically to the exhibits and will first make reference to carload shipments. It will be noted from Exhibit 1 (R. 115-117) that during the year 1946 there were only 9 carloads of freight shipped out from Black Rock other than during April and May. None of this moved during December or January. In 1947 the bulk of the carload shipment was in April and May but there was considerable during the months following April and May. This, however, is reflected in the shipments of volcanic ash, of which, as shown on Exhibit 2 (R. 118), there were a total

of 61 cars during the year 1947. During 1948 there were 18 cars which moved out in January but, again, this was made up principally of the volcanic ash movement from Pumice, and except for that January movement and the shipments out in April and May, there were only 13 cars which moved out during the rest of the year, 6 cars of which were water (R. 122) which did not originate at Black Rock, anyway (R. 221-222). In 1949, other than in April and May, there were only 9 cars moved out as billed from Black Rock during the whole year, and none whatsoever in the first 3 months of 1950 (R. 117). With respect to carload merchandise shipped in to Black Rock in 1946, there were 81 cars during the last 3 months of the year, all of which were sheep (R. 118) ; in 1947, 50 cars, all sheep, during the last 4 months of the year ; in 1948, 174 cars, all sheep, during the last 3 months ; in 1949, 127 cars, which included 8 cars of feed, early in the year and the others, all sheep, in October and November ; and in the first 3 months of 1950 there were 6 cars of sheep moved into Black Rock. In this connection, we wish to point out to the Court that by its amended order the Commission referred to the station of Black Rock as a shipping and receiving point for the seasonal handling of sheep, "to wit: Between December 1st and May 31st of each year" (R. 54), whereas, the evidence shows that very little shipping of sheep into Black Rock is done during the month of December, and except for December there is no shipment of sheep whatsoever during said period, either in or out of Black Rock, except upon some isolated occurrence, other than during April and May. As is shown by Exhibit 1 (R. 115-117), out of 81 cars of sheep coming into Black Rock in 1946 only 2 came in December, 78 in

November, and 1 in October. In 1947, only 2 came in in December, and 48 during November and the 2 months previous. In 1948, there were 21 cars of sheep which came into Black Rock in December but, as is shown by Exhibit 5 (R. 123), this was a shipment from Jericho to Black Rock, which in and of itself was an unusual movement and not a normal movement and one that did not occur during any of the other years, Jericho itself being a point for receiving and departure of sheep for range to range movement similar to Black Rock, as well as a shearing point for sheep from the winter range. In 1949, there were no sheep moved into Black Rock in December, all the sheep which came in by rail moving in in October and November. Thus, the evidence in the case conclusively shows that the normal season for shipping of sheep into Black Rock, if that is a basis upon which the Commission intends to grant its order, is not December 1st to May 31, but the season for shipping of sheep into Black Rock is generally October and November, and primarily November (R. 1), and the only season in normal years for shipping sheep out is April and May. With respect to other shipments, listed as moving in and out of Black Rock, other than sheep, the only carload shipments there have been were shipments of hay during the bad winters of 1948 and 1949 and some shipment of water, which, while supposedly originating at Black Rock to go out to other points for watering sheep, is actually shipped from Milford, Salt Lake, and other points (R. 221). With respect to the shipping of hay into the area, during the bad winter of 1948 and 1949 the State of Utah helped to carry out what was termed as a "hay lift operation," and the hay lift operation carried on by the State of Utah was in the

main handled by the railroads although airplane service was also used. Except that handled in connection with the State of Utah, however, and in connection with the movement of hay into the area, the witness Barton testified, "We shipped a lot of it in by truck last year" (R. 508), also a substantial amount of it came from Milford and was flown out by plane. In addition to that, hay was hauled by railroad to various points in the areas and dropped off at the side of the track and at blind sidings in the area, in any of which instances there was no necessity for an agent to be present, in any event (R. 442).

The facts as hereinabove referred to contain substantially all of the evidence, except such as will be cumulative thereto, with reference to carload shipments in and out of Black Rock, and it is the position of the Railroad Company that with respect to carload shipments there is no necessity of an agent; particularly, with respect to the movements of livestock into Black Rock an agent would not be necessary and was so determined as to livestock generally by the Railroad Brotherhoods in setting up the 40-hour week (R. 627), and the Commission evidently concluded the same in ordering that the station may be closed during the summer months and until December 1st, prior to which time the majority of sheep moving by rail are shipped in.

The facts with respect to less than carload shipments of freight are very important and definitely show that there is no justification for maintaining an agent at Black Rock for such less than carload shipments. Exhibit 6 (R. 124), gives a list of the movement of less than carload shipments, either coming into or out of Black Rock over a period

of 21 months from July 1, 1948, to March 31, 1950. Over that entire period of time there was but one less than carload consignment which moved out from Black Rock. That was shipped by K. V. McKay from Black Rock to Provo, Utah, during October 1948. With respect to shipments moving into Black Rock on a less than carload basis during the 21 months specified, there were only 14 months out of the 21 when any LCL shipment moved into Black Rock and never during any one of those 14 months was there more than 1 such LCL consignment which came into Black Rock.

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