1951

Los Angeles and Salt Lake Railroad Company and Union Pacific Railroad Company v. Public Service Commission of Utah et al : Brief of Respondents

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

THE EVIDENCE IS SUFFICIENT TO SUSTAIN THE FINDING AND ORDER OF THE COMMISSION THAT PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY REQUIRE THE MAINTENANCE OF AN AGENT AT BLACK ROCK DURING THE PERIOD OF DECEMBER 1ST OF EACH YEAR TO MAY 31ST OF THE SUCCEEDING YEAR.

As stated hereinbefore, it has long been established as a rule of law by the Supreme Court of this state that where there is any competent evidence to support the findings and conclusions of the Public Service Commission, its determination will not be disturbed upon appeal. As a matter of fact Section 76-6-16, U. C. A. 1943, provides:

“The review shall not be extended further than to determine whether the commission has regularly pursued its authority, including a determination of whether the order or decision under review violates any right of the petitioner under the Constitution of the United States or of the State of Utah. The findings and conclusions of the commission on questions of fact shall be final and shall not be subject to review.”

In the case of *Mulcahy v. Public Service Commission*, 101 Utah 245, 117 P. 2d 298, the court held:

“It is not required that the facts found by the Commission be conclusively established, nor even that they be shown by a preponderance of the evidence if there is in the record competent evidence from which a reasonable mind could believe or conclude that a certain fact existed, a finding of such fact finds justification in the evidence and we cannot disturb it.” (Italics add.)

Again in the case of *Goodrich v. Public Service Commission*, (Utah) 198 P. 2d 975, the court held:

“We have repeatedly held that in reviewing cases certified to this court from the Public Service Commission on a statement of error that the Commission’s report, findings, conclusions and order are unlawful, we are limited in our review to ascertaining whether or not the Commission had before it substantial evidence upon which to base its decision. Only in the event that we find the Commission acted arbitrarily, capriciously or unreasonably in denying applicant’s petition can we set aside the order.”

In the case of *Union Pacific Railroad Company v. Public Service Commission*, 103 Utah 459, 135 P. 2d.

915, the court determined that whether the desired service was a matter of public convenience and necessity within the meaning of the statute, was for the Public Service Commission to determine and the Supreme Court could not consider the expediency or wisdom of the order or whether or not on the evidence produced the court would have made a similar ruling.

“In a proceeding to review an order of the Commission, judicial action cannot supplant discretionary authority of that body.” *Utah Light and Traction Company v. Public Service Commission*, 101 Utah 99, 118 P. 2d. 683.

In discussing the sufficiency of the evidence in the light of cases decided by this court in the past, as well as by courts of other jurisdictions, we heartily agree with the statement contained in the case of *Los Angeles and Salt Lake Railroad Company v. Public Utilities Commission*, 80 Utah 455, 15 P. 2d 358, to the effect that “each situation must stand on its own legs. It is impossible to lay down a rule which would fit each case.” For that reason we feel that the cases cited in petitioners’ brief are not at all persuasive of the position taken by them. A careful reading of such cases will convince the court that they are readily distinguishable on the facts with respect to matters which we believe are determinative of the instant case.

In the case of *State v. Chicago and N. W. Railway Company* (Minnesota) 297 N.W. 715, the Chicago and

N.W. Railway sought to close a station from an agency service to a custodian service, but in that case the company proposed to maintain the present station "with an agent available at all times but actively on duty only when business requires. The principal change will be the discontinuance of money transactions." The court also stated that "under the proposed plan the depot would be heated and lighted when necessary for convenience of passengers." Again "in case of emergency or necessity twenty-four hour agency stations at Waseco, 6 miles west, and Owatonna, 9 miles east can be reached by highway and telephone." These facts alone would remove the *Chicago and Northwestern Railway Company* case from being comperable in any way with the instant case for the reason that in the matter now before the court the Black Rock station is located at a point some 28 miles from the nearest highway, is without telephone communication with the outside world, and under the proposed plan the custodian would not be on duty at all times and available to the public. Because of this fact and because of the peculiar conditions incident to the operation of the Black Rock station the Public Service Commission was justified in requiring it to be left open during the winter season.

We also desire to call attention to the quotation appearing on page 32 of petitioners' brief in which they purport to sum up the decision of the Minnesota court in the following language:

"In some and on this record the following propositions are beyond controversy except that

freight on incoming shipments must be paid at point of origin and that on outgoing car loads at destination, the meridan carload business will be served as well by custodian as by the present full-time agency service."

The court went on to say in the next sentence that, "Placing with the custodian, orders for cars to be procured through the agent at Owatonna will but continue present practice." The present practice in respect to ordering cars at Black Rock is to place all orders with the agent at Black Rock and, therefore, to continue said practice would be to require the Railroad Company to continue its agency service. It might further be noted that in the *Chicago and Northwestern Railway Company* case the decision of the Minnesota Supreme Court was by a divided court, the Chief Justice and two other justices dissenting on the grounds that the evidence supporting the finding of the Railroad Commission.

Again in the case of *Thompson v. Nebraska State Railway Commission*, 8 N.W. 2d 552, the court pointed out that the gross assigned revenue from the station was only \$1851.31 in an entire year's operation. Compared to the revenue, the court indicated, the expenses amounted to \$95.19 for every \$100.00 of total revenue. The court further pointed out that the community of Oak, Nebraska, was adjacent to gravel and black-surface highways; that eleven trucking operators were serving the village and approximately two-thirds of the less than carload inbound shipments and a part of the out-

bound shipments were carried by truck. The court then went on to state:

"The proposed change from agency to caretaker service contemplates no alteration of train service and schedules, abandonment of property facilities or discontinuance of essential service, although there will undoubtedly be some inconvenience. The station is equipped with living quarters where the caretaker will reside, he will keep the station lighted, clean and warm, and be available when his services are required. *Free-toll telephone service will be maintained to Davenport and Nora, adjacent stations. When requested the careaker will secure information relating to car service or rates; order cars spotted for shippers, or forward and receive telegrams. He will not register complaints, handle money, or do any paper work. All shipments received must be prepaid, but the caretaker will protect and release them to consignees. All shipments forwarded will be waybilled by the the next agent in line of traffic. Shipments of cream and baggage will be handled as usual but will be way-billed and checked by the baggage man. Passengers will buy tickets from the conductor on the train at no higher rate.*" (Italics added.)

This is entirely different from the service proposed by the Railroad Company in the instant case since the evidence shows that it will not maintain constant service during the business hours of the day nor will it keep its station warm and lighted and available to individuals who desire to make use of it. Nor is it contemplated that petitioners will furnish a person to check on cars,

to spot them or to make other person-to-person dealings with prospective shippers. In view of such circumstances, we cannot see how the ruling of the Nebraska Supreme Court in the *Thompson* case in any way aids petitioners' position here.

In the case of *In re: Thompson* (Nebraska) 6 N.W. 2d 607 (quoted from by petitioners on page 34 and 35 of their brief) the court stated that the town of Emmet was on a main highway; that the trade territory of the town extended only 5 miles to the east, 6 miles to the west, 25 miles to the north and 25 miles to the south; that it was only 8.2 miles west of O'Neill and 9.8 miles east of Atkinson, both of which communities are open agency stations. There was no indication in the Nebraska case that weather conditions or otherwise would make it undesirable or impracticable for persons to transact their business with the open-agency stations at the towns indicated. Again we believe that there is no proper basis for comparison of a case with the one here involved where the territory served by the Black Rock station extends approximately 80 miles westwardly over rough territory where roads are at the most passable only and where prospective shippers and persons expecting to receive shipments must travel hours before they can reach the station to transact business with the railroad. The Nebraska court also stated in the *Emmet* case that abandonment would not change any essential service. "The important inconvenience will be that no paper work would be done at the station." Petitioners' in

this case claimed before the Commission that there is no paper work for the station agent now to perform at Black Rock so that his continuance there would not be affected in any way by the amount of paper work to be done. On the other hand, the testimony does disclose that the agent is kept busy during the day and, therefore, that his services are of considerable value to the Railroad Company as well as the shipping public.

In *Louden v. State* (Oklahoma) 78 P. 2d 1059 (cited by petitioners on page 41 of their brief) the court pointed out:

“It is to be observed that while appearances were noted on the part of persons or interests served by the railroad in the town, no effort was made to support the formal objections noted at the beginning of the hearing. *It is a fair statement to say there was no legal objections to the granting of the application.*” (Italics added.)

So, the court in conclusion stated:

“Having in mind the lack of objection to the application, and the showing actually made, we think the corporation commission erred when it denied the application.”

With reference to the quotation appearing on page 42 of petitioners' brief to the effect that the Supreme Court of Oklahoma authorized the transfer of the paper work which had formerly been done at the Lima office to some other office, the petitioners failed again to note that the court stated “that no objection to a change was made by the shippers served” and therefore determined

that it was possible for the Railroad Company to change its billing practice and paper work from one station to another. However, in the instant case the shippers at Pumice and Cruz have appeared and protested the change and have requested the Commission to continue the agency station at Black Rock where the work is now being handled for the non-agency sidings of Pumice and Cruz.

In the later case of *Louden v. State*, 100 P. 2d 890, the court pointed out that the revenue from the operation of the station at Holmstead, Oklahoma, amounted to \$2,067.53 per year. This may be compared to Exhibit 12 of the Railroad Company introduced in evidence in the instant matter which indicates that the total revenue received through the Black Rock station, *not including the revenue from business done at the non-agency sidings of Cruz or Pumice*, amounted to \$19,975.90 for the calendar year 1949. The Oklahoma Supreme Court also stated that the Company proposed to substitute a caretaker who "would be available every day during business hours, would keep the station open, heat it when necessary, place incoming LCL shipments in the freight room and make delivery to the consignee, receiving outgoing LCL shipments and place them in the freight room for pickup by the train crew. The substitution of a caretaker would require passengers to pay their fare to the conductor, would require that inbound freight be prepaid and outbound freight to be sent collect and that bills of lading be issued by and cars ordered through the

nearest open station." The nearest open station, however, was only 5.6 miles to the south.

In the last Oklahoma case cited on page 43 of petitioners' brief (*Louden v. State*, 118 P. 2d 238) the court stated that the town of Isabella was only 8.9 miles from the nearest open station. It was further pointed out that the town was located one-half a mile from the arterial highway, had access to all forms of communication, and "the principal difference that the proposed change would effect in the Railway Company's service to the traveling public is that passengers imbarking on said company's trains at Isablella would pay their fares to the conductors of those trains rather than purchasing a ticket at the station." In the instant case we are not concerned primarily with the matter of convenience to passengers in obtaining tickets before boarding the train although that itself would be one of the factors to be considered—especially when passengers attempt to make use of the station facilities during the severe winter months while waiting for the train which is frequently late. But we are concerned with the attempt on the part of prospective shippers and those intending or expecting to receive shipments of any kind to have available an agent at the station who can serve their needs during the business hours of the day. Is it fair to require a party who may have to travel a distance from 28 to 60 miles over very poor roads in severe winter weather upon arriving at the station to wait until a section foreman should return from his work at 4:00 in the evening or be required

to travel an additional distance of 23 miles to reach a station where an agent is in attendance?

In the case of *Thompson v. Nebraska State Railway Commission* (Nebraska) 4 N.W. 755, cited by petitioners on page 44 of their brief, the Nebraska Supreme Court, although reversing the State Railway Commission denying the right of the Chicago and Northwestern Railway Company to discontinue an agent at Nenzel, Nebraska, did set forth the criteria to be followed by the Railway Commission in determining whether an agency station was authorized. We believe that the criteria set forth by the court in that case when applied to the evidence adequately justifies the order in the instant case requiring an agent at the Black Rock station during the winter months. In quoting from the case of *New York Central Railroad Company v. Public Utilities Commission*, 123 Ohio State 560, 176 N.E. 219, the court stated:

“In determining the question whether a railroad company may change one of its stations from an agency to a non-agency or prepaid station, each case must be determined upon the peculiar facts attendant thereon. The volume of business done at each station, its proximity to other stations, the accessibility thereof, the cost of maintaining such agency station, the financial loss, if any, to the railroad company, due regard for the welfare of the public, and the cost of operating such service, and of probabilities of future development are all circumstances to be taken into consideration.”

The court in the *Thompson* Case, in reviewing the exhibits, indicated that the revenues assigned to the

Nenzel station for the year 1940 amounted to \$4600.09, whereas in the instant case the revenues assignable to Black Rock station amounted to over \$19,000.00 for the year 1949. The testimony further disclosed that Nenzel is on a paved highway which runs across the state, that railroad facilities are available at the towns of Cody and Cilgore, which stations already handled all Western Union messages and phoned them to the ranchers. There was no indication that it would be difficult for persons attempting to use the facilities of the railroad to do so if the agent was terminated at the station.

In the case of *In re: Union Pacific Railroad Company*, a corporation, applicant for leave to discontinue Agency at Montour, Idaho, 64, Ida. 529, 134 P. 2d 599, (referred to by petitioners on page 51 of their brief) the Supreme Court of Idaho stated:

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